(MRIByYoI
Quiele][falos)
6)( D83

_(@aienndleng
MM BNEB B HEnIM Do)

8HEBOMIONY O RINEDBREIE MM QY ESODIW 2@ (@I BLINIINIMNISS ).
2GRN SHILIOOMENI0)e] @RWIdo @ROINIOE]EHRIZ0, MoldhILINRISOTIEE
(enilondl @3mM3le MIQIENE) AIZRIMM @AY B@ B UD, HBBIRIWQIo B EIPBIDM
eSO O MVIoMVEIBIB BBl ODNBRIBE NS glo NflUazmm3,

THALASSERY
HERITAGE
PROJECT

(MALABAR CULTURAL HERITAGE)

Malabar has a distinctive history, different from that of the other parts of Kerala. Although much
of its prehistory is not known, ancient Tamil works during the Sangam age, i.e., 3rd century BCE,
throw light on the cultural heritage of this place, seen in its most typical form in Kalarippayattu

and Theyyam performances.
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Come and discover Thalassery, the heritage
town, through the Harbour Town Circuit. Each
building in this city has its own story. Once the

hub of spice trade, this city still carries rem- @30Mm361
nants of an old bustling trading centre. Various (Tl)(boe)33§18m35
e erreerecr, maoumily
tions and understand the forces that shaped gjmu::;)nsimmol
the growth of different religious practices in d

8 (MB6OBRUD

this city. A walk through the streets helps you

appreciate the unique culinary traditions too of 213u6S
Thalassery. 8ald 863N
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Wellesley Bungalow is named after Lord Arthur Wellesley, famous for having
introduced cricket to the state. This beautiful mansion situated in a calm
and tranquil area originally belonged to T. H. Baber, the then Sub-Collector
of Malabar during the colonial era. Sir Arthur Wellesley, who later became
the Duke of Wellington, reportedly played cricket here, and was very keen
on promoting this sport. The Bungalow is now the official residence of the
District Sub-Collector. Situated close to Thalassery Fort, the building is easy
to locate.
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Thalassery Fort stands tall in Thalassery’s fast-changing townscape. In 1683
CE, when the English East India Company started trading in Malabar, it built
a factory at Thalassery and fortified it in 1708 CE. Hence, it was used for
trade purposes in the initial years. Later it became a military base and ad-
ministrative centre for British rule in India.

An underground chamber of the fort is said to have been used to conduct
many meetings. This square-shaped fort is an excellent masterpiece of the
architectural style of yesteryears. The flanking bastions, massive entrance
wall, the lighthouse pronouncing it a harbour town and the secret tunnels
are some among its notable features.
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St John's Anglican Church, also known as English Church, was built in 1869 CE
using an endowment from Sir Edward Brennan, a Master Attendant at Thal-
assery Port. The British philanthropist reached Thalassery after a shipwreck
and bequeathed all his savings to a Poor Fund much before his death in 1859
CE.

The church is a fine specimen of Gothic Revival and Anglican architectural
styles. Brennan and many other officials of the East India Company were
buried in the church cemetery. The epitaph of Edward Brennan reads “The
sterling upright Englishman”. The church was given a facelift in 2009 by the
State Archaeology and Tourism Departments.
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In 1856 CE, the German Basel Mission founded the Basel Evangelical Mission
Parsi (BEMP) School. The school was influential in bringing a new social cul-
ture in the town and produced some notable alumni in the political sphere.

Initially, it was named Basel German Mission School but later changed to Ba-
sel German Mission Parsi School owing to the contribution made by Mr Kai-
kose Rudershan, the Parsi philanthropist, to the school. During the time of
World War ll, the word “German” was replaced by “Evangelical,” for political
reasons. The school is hoted for its spacious hall, roof tiles, and huge wood-
en beams used in ceiling. Earlier, there was a Gallery Hall but it got ruined
over time. Now, it is being restored.
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Located in the heart of Thalassery town, the CSI Christ Church has been a
witness to Thalassery’s life and changing fortunes that encompassed its re-
ligious and educational reforms too. Established by a Basel Mission evange-
list, Dr Reinhardt in 1864 CE, this monument stands in all its glory and gran-
deur, enthralling its viewers. The Basel Mission architectural style is evident
in the church construction. Featuring a bell tower atop its roof, wide-arched
windows with stained glass panes, hanging lamps, a central Gothic arch and
two smaller arches in the altar space, the structure arrests one's attention
instantly. Surkhi [brick dust] mixture and laterite blocks were the main el-
ements used in its construction, along with the locally available wood and
roof tiles for other interior and exterior works. Even after 150 years, this
building stands strong, pointing to the sincerity and architectural expertise
of those times.
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The 200-year-old Odathil Mosque, known as Odathil Palli, is a magnificent
monument that reflects the heritage of Thalassery town. It was built by
Moosa Kakka of Keyi family in 1806 CE. The land for the mosque, obtained
from Dutch East India Company, used to be cultivated for growing sugarcane
and was known as “Karimbin Odam”. Karimbu in Malayalam means “sugar-
cane” and Odam is Dutch for “garden”. Hence the name.

Odathil mosque is noted for its distinctive architectural style, which is sim-
ilar to the architectural styles followed in Kerala temples during that time.
The three-storeyed mosque is famous for its copper plate roofing, abundant
use of teak wood, countless windows and golden thazhikakudam [finials].
The graveyard of the mosque is used to bury members of the Keyi family
only. The mosque is located near the old bus stand at Thalassery in Kannur.
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Built in 1919, Maliyekkal House has been a witness to Thalassery’s changing
history. The late Kadankandi Kuttiyamu Haji built this beautiful mansion for
his children. It has more than 16 rooms. The pillars, tiles, chandeliers, wooden
work and nearly all features in this house speak volumes for the trade rela-
tionships this family had and the greatness of local craftsmanship.

Maliyekkal House is not just an ancestral home at Thalassery, but an icon for
reformation in education. P. M. Mariyumma, the eldest member of the fam-
ily, was English-educated at a time when education was denied to Muslim
girls. She was in the forefront of several reformation activities in the fields
of education and employment.
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The story of Thalassery biryani started here in 1942 CE, when Paris Restau-
rant was founded by the late M. K. Mohammed Haji. He created Dum Biryani
in his own way using special Biriyani masala which has a unique flavour.

Even after long 78 years of continuous service, their heritage and vintage
charm remain strong as they maintain the hotel, its facade and premises.
Initially, the hotel building functioned in a rented space, once home to a
member of Arakkal royal family. It was later purchased. The old almirahs and
glass jars are still preserved. Thalassery’s Paris Restaurant symbolizes a tra-
dition, a tradition of love, the dedication of a generation of employees who
wholeheartedly work for its wellbeing.
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The 260-year-old Bangla House or Vayapurath Kunnumel Tharavadu located
in Thalassery town still retains its heritage charm. This ancestral house also
holds strong links with the town'’s cricket legacy.

Bangla House is a symbol of architectural splendour, featuring a unique
style of construction with wide verandas and exclusive wood carvings. The
antique chandeliers, Belgian glass windows, Burma tiles and several other
objects displayed in the spacious hall of the first floor throw light on the
life and culture of the family through almost three centuries. An art gallery
adjacent to the hall is a reservoir of rare records, books and photographs.
Its large dining hall has hosted many lunches for famous cricket players and
other sports players
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The Judicial System of Administration at Thalassery started long back in
1793 CE when Thalassery was the headquarters of the Northern Division of
Malabar Province. But in 1802 the Provincial Court paved a new way in the
court, with the introduction of the Cornwallis System of administration of
justice, an amalgamation of English and Indian elements in social justice.

In 1843 CE, the Court underwent further changes when the Zilla Court
changed to Civil and Sessions Judge of the Zilla, but, later in 1873 CE, Thal-
assery became the headquarters of District judges. Before the end of the
19th Century, Thalassery had woken up to a new judicial era. The numerous
heritage buildings at the Thalassery Court still maintain an old-world charm.
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Cricket which has become a symbol of Indian nationality was introduced
into Thalassery sometime in the late 18th Century. Sir Arthur Wellesley,
later Duke of Wellington, brought cricket to this place and played with his
colleagues at the stadium. When he did not have enough players to make a
team, he gathered peons, dhobies, fisherfolk and many others to make up
the number.

The Municipal Stadium was constructed in the year 1802, and in 2002 Thal-
assery cricket ground celebrated its 200th birthday by hosting a cricket
match between India and Sri Lanka. Before the construction of Thalassery
Cricket Stadium, this stadium hosted many Ranji Trophy cricket matches
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Named after its builder, E. N. Overbury, who served as a local judge in Thal-
assery court, this seaside park built on a hill, offers an excellent view of the
Arabian sea. Overbury wanted to create a picnic spot on the cliff. Though
he started the construction in 1879 CE, he could not complete it. Hence the
name, Overbury's Folly.

Situated near Thalassery Municipal Stadium, this park is a popular hangout
for locals and tourists alike. The seaside park is a perfect spot to be in dur-
ing evenings when the sun touches the horizon. The watchtower and the
coffee shop are the other attractions in the park.
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awahar Ghat or Azad Beach situated behind Thalassery Fort is of his-

torical significance because of its association with the Indian National
Freedom movement. In 1940 CE, Left-wing supporters within the Congress
planned to organise a massive agitation on the seashore (Azad Beach) west
of St Joseph’s School to protest against the oppression and brutal rule of
the British government. In anticipation of the movement, the British gov-
ernment issued prohibition orders. Thousands of people lined up under the
leadership of K. Damodaran, P. K. Krishnan and Madhavan. The British police
and agitators had an encounter which led to firing and eventually the death
of brave revolutionaries Abu Master and Chathukutty. Several others were
sent to the prison. In 1930 CE, the Salt March organised by Gandhiji had its
effect on Malabar too.
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The Thalassery pier, locally called Kadalpalam in Thalassery, is an old pier
reaching out to the Arabian Sea. The shallow water and large rocks often led
to shipwrecks and hence in 1910 CE, the British East India Company built the
pier for easy transportation of goods. The 500-foot-long bridge is 24 metres
wide on the shore-side and 40 metres wide at the sea end. Later, the emer-
gence of other ports and several other factors contributed to the decline

of Thalassery Port, but for old natives, the memories still remain fresh. The
Thalassery pier holds an important place in the development of the town as
a commercial centre.

Visited by tourists and locals alike, today the Thalassery pier is a perfect
place to spend the evenings, as the day draws to its close.
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Thazhe Angadi Heritage Street at Thalassery tells the story of an era of
trade and colonialism. Situated close to the harbour, this street has a long
history of trading coffee, pepper, cashew and other spices through “Uru” or
Fat Boats. Used for storing spices, they were known as Uppu Pandikasalas
meaning salt warehouses. The world famous Thalassery Black Pepper and
Thalassery Bark were transported from this port. After Independence, with
the rise of road transportation and the growth of several other ports like
Cochin and Mangalore, Thalassery Port lost its significance.

Other than the warehouses, there is an art gallery here which conducts
ghazals and other literary programmes once in a while.




2neil@d mmeE

DJ J ell@d @mieglB10Y 490 (MU O al9EHMIENS. aNIBENID alg6EM@DI6Y

@RBE0RWQMOND (8BRURNINIIGUD MIdam]gj@IeM e®). 80D @MIeIE ()
M@INNEI HOUBNWIOMIONY 63E3 OBINEEMo dhISIWIEN, E3SIOM Nilalgel
0@ nEAIMIG U, BQ-nflo BRTOMMS, B6EIN ST HE&IOTOWSIM aNIG
[383nmM3ss MuN,Io] ng)MINIWEE) 8al@38HSMIGNM).

Chalil Mosque is 490 years old. It was built by the locals at the far end

of Harbour town. This mosque is also an example of architectural fi-
nesse, and is noted for extensive wooden works, single-beam ceilings and
the Houdh [place for ablution] carved out from a single stone.
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Situated near Pier Road at Thalassery, Ali Haji Mosque was built by the late
Mehman Seth during mid-19th century CE. He was a rich merchant, who
came and settled in Malabar Coast after a spell of extreme drought in Guja-
rat. German-made lamps and huge wooden beams accentuate the beauty of
the structure.
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Thayalangadi mosque is a 100-year-old mosque built by the Keyi family. The
mosque is appreciated for its heritage value and architectural significance,
with single stone pillars with carvings, and a Houdh [place for ablution].

An Ethim Khana [school] also functions nearby.
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Dedicated to Lord Rama, an incarnation of Vishnu, Thiruvangad Sree
Ramaswamy temple is also known as Brass Pagoda, owing to the brass
sheeting on roofs instead of the customary clay tiles. The temple is a beau-
tiful architectural monument with ancient sculptures and mural paintings,
which reveal different epic stories.

This temple is more than 2000 years old and is associated with several his-
torical tales and legends. Tipu Sultan’s forces, in the course of their invasion
of Malabar during the mid-18th century, damaged some of its parts. The
temple is situated at Thiruvangad, Thalassery, 24 kms from Kannur town.
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Consecrated by the great renaissance leader, Sree Narayana Guru in 1908 CE,
the Jagannath Temple is a landmark in Thalassery’s history of social refor-
mation and change. Resembling the Jagannatha temple in Puri, this place of
worship was open to people of all castes from the 1920s. The main deity of
the temple is Lord Siva.

Some of the attractions of the temple are its unique wood carvings on the
ceiling and a statue in the middle of a pond. In 1927 CE, the first statue of
Sree Narayana Guru, built in Italy, was installed in the temple premises. A
museum dedicated to the works of Sree Narayana Guru is also present in
the temple complex.
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The Pazhassi Circuit is an expedition that in-
vites you to explore the life and struggles of
the great ruler, Kerala Varma Pazhassi Raja.
Popularly known as the Lion of Kerala, he is
revered for his fights for freedom, which took
place much before the 1857 War of Independ-
ence. The king belonged to the Padinjare Ko-
vilakam (West Palace) of the Kottayam royal
dynasty, which ruled the Kottayam Malabar
region, an area highly coveted for black pepper.

Pazhassi Raja’s storyline of resistance is divid- nJ‘PgQ'l

ed into three phases: against Hyder Ali during nurbee,‘;gg'lem:)s
1773-82 CE, against Tipu Sultan during 1784-93 menimwlg)

CE; and against British East India till his death (10O M sgn‘]m)o/
in 1805 CE. This Circuit ranges from Kannur dis- 66l

trict to Wayanad district, covering 21 destina- 8 (MB6UBUD
tions that include palaces, temples, museums, a13016)S

and forest areas which played a significant role

BaldHe630mM
in Pazhassi Raja’s life and struggles. 3m3
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Kadirur Surya Narayana Temple is a prominent Hindu temple, situated 8
kms from Thalassery. Kadirur is abbreviated from the word Kadiravapu-
ram means “the land of Sun”. According to legend, the temple traces its
roots to the Ramayana. It is believed that Lord Rama, on his way to Lanka in
search of Goddess Sita, consecrated the idols of Lord Subramanya in Makreri
and Peralassery temples. When the Vedic Brahmins living in Kadirur came

to know about this, they went into meditation. Pleased with their devotion,
Lord Rama came to Kadirur and blessed them. As he felt the presence of
the Sun God in the land, Lord Rama installed the idol of Lord Surya Narayana
here. Another version of the story is that Sage Agastya Muni gave Aditya
Hridayamantram [a hymn glorifying the Sun God] to Sree Rama as he stood
confused at this place, during the battle with Ravana. After chanting this
hymn three times, Sree Rama defeated Ravana, and upon this success, he
came at Kadirur and consecrated the idol of Lord Surya Narayana.

The mural paintings and the darushilpam [wooden sculptures] over the
sanctum sanctorum are admired by both believers and art enthusiasts.
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Pookode Handloom Village has a long history of weaving. It once had more
than 250 weavers working in home-based weaving centres. During the 16th
and 17th centuries, there was a tradition of weaving fabrics for temples and
royal palaces. This handloom village was one among them, although its exact
year of establishment is unknown. The villagers had a practice of weaving
dhotis and shirts. Dyed threads were used for both handloom and machine
weaving, as there was no means for dyeing threads in the village. But now,
this handloom village is on the verge of extinction with only two families in-
volved in the handloom weaving industry.
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Situated 24 kms from Kannur, Kottayam Palace in Malabar was built during
the middle of 19th century CE. Out of the three branches of the Kottayam
royal dynasty, the Kottayam Palace or the Thekke Kovilakam (Southern
Branch) is the only one that is well maintained. The palace is built in the tra-
ditional architectural style of a Nalukettu [quadrangular house] and features
terracotta tiling, wooden detailing in pillars and ceilings, and an open court-
vard.

While perpetuating the memory of the celebrated heroes, the house also
keeps alive the architectural intelligence of yesteryears and the varied styles
patronised in the past.
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Thrikkaikkunnu Mahadeva temple in Kottayam Malabar is another prominent
temple in Kannur district. The Kottayam royal family has special rights in the
temple. The presiding deities of the temple are Lord Mahadeva and Lord Pe-
rumal. The temple is an example of architectural splendour. It is situated in
an area that was elevated using the soil excavated after digging the temple
pond. The temple building has the traditional Koothambalam [theatre for
art performances] and a Chuttambalam [second enclosure to the sanctum
sanctorumy]. It has darusilpams [sculptures] of navagrahas [nine planets] on
the pavilion above the sanctum sanctorum. The sculptures in the temple are
ancient and represent epic stories like Palazhi Kadayal or Samudra mantha-
na [churning of the mythical Milky Ocean].
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Pazhassi Kovilakam or the Pazhassi Palace at Mattannur in Kannur district,
also called Kottayam Padinjare Kovilakam was constructed in 1903 CE, us-
ing funds from the British government as well as that of the Pazhassi royal
family. This palace was originally a spacious ettukettu [two-quadrangled]
construction, but later some parts were demolished and the building was
reduced to a nalukettu [single-quadrangled structure]. Nonetheless, the
traditional Kerala style architecture was left intact. Though the century-old
palace is in a dilapidated condition now, it treasures many artefacts which
are of importance to archaeology and history buffs.
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Pazhassi Raja Smrithi Mandiram, located at Pazhassi, Mattannur in Kannur, is
a museum dedicated to Pazhassi Raja at his ancestral place. Constructed in
the model of Kuthambalam [traditional theatre mostly found in Hindu tem-
ples], this museum is built above a pond, which was once part of the palace
complex of Pazhassi Raja. After his death in 1805, the Britishers demolished
the entire palace complex and built the Thalassery-Mysore Highway.

The outerside of the museum wall has beautiful mural paintings depicting
the life of Pazhassi Raja. Several letters and documents of communication
with the Britishers are displayed inside the museum. A single stone statue
of Pazhassi Raja is another notable attraction in the museum.
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According to oral tales, Puralimala, a high and beautiful hill, was once the
main centre of the Chera kingdom. King Harishchandra Perumal built a fort
which came to be called Harishchandra Fort, though no evidence of the
structure is to be seen now. This historical place has a close association with
the Lion of Kerala, Pazhassi Raja. It is said that the first revolutionary war
between Pazhassi's army and the British was waged here, and Pazhassi re-
sided here during the early period of revolt.

Lord Muthappan is the presiding deity of the Malur Puralimala Chithrapeed-
am Muthappan Madappura. In fact, the temple is considered the Aroodast-
hanam [the second abode] of Lord Muthappan, who had spent years there
doing tapas [meditation]. The nearby Puralimala Viewpoint offers a magnifi-
cent view of the valleys and the town is a key attraction of the place.
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n ancient temple situated in Muzhakkunnu village of Kannur district,

Sree Mridanga Saileshwari temple, is one among the 108 Durga temples
established by Lord Parasurama. There is an interesting story about the
origin of the temple that is related to music. It is believed that Goddess Mri-
danga Saileshwari took birth on her own (swayambhoo) in the shape of Mri-
dangam, a musical instrument. The goddess was the family deity of Kerala
Varma Pazhassi Raja. Before going to battles, kings used to perform Bali [an-
imal sacrifice] in the den temple situated on the west side of the main tem-
ple, although that structure is in ruins now. This den temple is considered as
the Aaroodasthanam [the central point] of all Porkali temples in Kerala.
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Renowned for giving training in Kalaripayattu [ancient marital art that orig-
inated in Kerala] to the princes of feudal states, Pindali Kalari is believed to
be one among the 64 kalaris [training centres] set up by Lord Parasurama.
For the kings of the Kottayam royal dynasty, the ceremony of coronation
was not considered complete until the prince received the sword from

the Kalari Gurukkal [master].

In those days, there were two arenas for training in Kalaripayattu. For kings,
the arena was inside the temple. There was an outer kalari for training the
common man. Today, almost 40 students are getting trained at the Pindali
Kalari.
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Thodeekalam Siva temple, situated 2 kms from Kannavam in Thalassery of
Kannur district, is supposed to be more than 2000 years old. It is revered for
its mural paintings. These paintings were made using only natural colours.
They depict the famous Shaiva-Vaishnavite epic tales and are assumed to
have been drawn by Tamil nomads during the 14th and 15th centuries. The
main deity of this temple is Lord Siva, known by the name of “Perumal”.

Thodeekalam temple was a major refuge of Pazhassi Raja, though the exact
location of his hideout was Madathilvalappil, which is located nearby and in
ruins now. With the end of feudal rule, the temple was renovated several
times until 1994, when the Archaeology Department took over the temple
and its conservation.
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The Kannavam Forest is not just a leafy paradise but an eloquent reminder
of the historic battles waged by Pazhassi Raja against the Britishers. The
forest belonged to Kannavath Sankaran Nambiar, one of the principal sup-
porters of Pazhassi Raja. In 1801 CE, Kannavath Nambiar and his son along
with other revolutionaries were captured at Kuttiadi, and forcibly marched
to a hill near their residence at Kannavam to be hanged in public view. The
Kannavam forest was the arena of many a guerrilla battle, and witness to
several tales of brutal torture.

Another feature to be noted are the temples in the forest range, each
unique in its way, protected and preserved by the tribal communities. Kan-
navam is a rare place to explore, and it unveils treasures as you go on a for-
est trail as well as a heritage trail.
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The Aralam Farm and Wildlife Sanctuary is evergreen and deciduous forest
area spanning 55 sg. kms on the slope of the Western Ghats. The Aralam
Sanctuary is home to a wide array of flora and fauna, the only wildlife sanc-
tuary in Kannur district, and the best spot for eco-tourism lovers.

History says that this was the area where Pazhassi Raja went into exile dur-
ing the war with the British but not much of it is known today. In 1971 CE,
the Government of India built a farm in the Wildlife Sanctuary, which is one
of a kind in India. Day trekking programmes are a staple here, although vis-
itors have options for three-day trekking programmes to Ambalappara and
Meenmutty waterfalls, which need prior permission from the Forest Depart-
ment, and is depended on various other factors too
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Kottiyoor Siva temples, an ancient pilgrimage destination in North Kerala,

is situated in the peaceful hilly area of the Western Ghats. On the oppo-
site banks of the Bavali River situate two temples, Akkare Kottiyoor and
Ikkare Kottiyoor. Akkare Kottiyoor opens only for twenty-eight days dur-
ing Vaishakhamahotsavam - the annual festival of the temple, which falls in
the months of May-June. During that time, Ikkare Kottiyoor remains closed.

The restoration of the temple took place during the time of Shankaracharya,
and rituals of the festival were set out by him. Ikkare Kottiyoor is a formal
temple complex like any other temple. On the other hand, the Akkare Kot-
tiyoor temple stands in the middle of a pond and does not have any formal
structure. The Swayambhoo Shiva Linga is placed on a platform raised with
river stones. The Vaishakamahotsavam starts with Neyyattam [ablution us-
ing ghee] and ends with Elaneerattam [ablution using tender coconut water]
which are special rituals in the temple. Kottiyoor is said to be a place where
Nature, man and God become one.
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The Periya forest range in Wayanad has several important places that

are associated with Pazhassi Raja and the guerrilla warfare he conducted
against the British. It is said that Pazhassi's troops camped in the vicinity of
Kunkichira in Periya Reserve Forest, planned and executed different military
strategies against the English force. Beyond two mountain peaks from Kun-
kichira, lies the “Ottupara” where the Pazhassi Raja army was betrayed. Even
today it is a wilderness. The house of Thalakkal Chandu, archer and Com-
mander-in-Chief of Pazhassi's army, is also situated in this historical place.

Another importance of this area is that, during British rule in India, Periya
Ghat and Thamarassery Ghat were the only passes available for cart traffic
to Mananthavady in Wayanad.
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Right in the centre of the town at Mananthavady in Wayanad, there is an
iconic monument that attracts visitors from far and near. It is the tomb of
Pazhassi Raja, where thousands pay homage to the fierce ruler and warrior
of the pre-Independence era.

In 1996 CE, an underground museum was constructed. It promotes the cul-
tural and folklore history of Kerala. The museum displays Pazhassi Raja’s
sword, various objects and equipment used by different tribal groups, coins
used by several dynasties in Kerala and a collection of letters and docu-
ments of communication with the British troops. The garden is also a fa-
vourite picnic spot.
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Panamaram is a historical place which played a significant role in the pre-In-
dependence era. There used to be a fort in this place but it is in ruins now. In
1802 CE, the archer of Pazhassi troop, Thalakkal Chandu along with his troop,
captured the fort that was managed by the Infantry Units of Bombay. The
commanding officers Captain Dickinson and Lt Maxwell along with 70 other
soldiers were killed during the battle. In a retaliatory action in 1805, Thalak-
kal Chandu was executed under a Koli tree in Panamaram.

A small museum is built in this place in memory of the life of Thalakkal
Chandu, Commander in-Chief of Pazhassi army.
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An ancient temple situated at Mananthavady, dedicated to Goddess Dur-

ga, Valiyoorkkavu temple is considered to be one among the four guardian
shrines of Thirunelli temple. The year of construction of the temple is un-
known but several legends point to its Dravidian origin. Valliyoor Kavu festi-
val is well known and attracts thousands of pilgrims to the temple. Conduct-
ed during March-April, the 10-day festival at the temple is a celebration of
tradition, rituals, and culture.
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The Pazhassi Raja Landscape Museum, situated at Mavilanthod, Pulpally is
the place where the King of Kottayam was martyred in 1805 CE. The memo-
rial stone and the statue at this place commemorate his fierce and strong
opposition to the British rule. Recently, an open-air museum was construct-
ed at this place with sculptures made of fibre material, which portray the
life story of Pazhassi Raja. A park and a library have also been set up in this
place, though they are yet to be fully developed.
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Sree Thrissillery Mahadeva temple is an ancient temple in Wayanad, situated
8 kms north-west of Mananthavady. The presiding deity of the temple is
Lord Siva. However, there are other shrines too - for Goddess Parvathi, Dur-
ga and Lord Ayyappa.

The temple has a strong link with the Thirunelli Maha Vishnu temple. It is
believed that the rituals for ancestors cannot be considered complete with-
out an offering at the Thrissillery temple. The shrine of Jala Durga is sur-
rounded by water that flows from the Papanasini spring at Thirunelli. This
lake is unique in that its level remains stable in all climatic conditions. It has
never dried up. This temple is said to be one among the 108 Durga temples
installed by Lord Parasurama.
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This is a sub-temple of Thirunelli Maha Vishnu temple, and its rituals are as-
sociated with the main temple. It is a shrine, situated in a unique spot, and
located around 6 kms from Thirunelli temple.
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A famous pilgrim centre visited by devotees mainly for paying homage to
their ancestors, the Thirunelli temple is situated in a valley surrounded by
mountain peaks and dense forests. According to popular belief, Lord Brah-
ma, the lord of creation, during one of his travels, saw an image of Lord
Vishnu under a Nelli tree. Later He installed and consecrated the idol. Tak-
ing a dip in Papanasini, the mountain spring from Brahmagiri, is believed

to wash away all the worldly sins and prepare the devotee for salvation.
The Vilakku Maadam [traditional lamp sculpted from stone] and the Karingal
Paathi [granite water channel] are a testimony to the enviable artistry of
anonymous native craftsmen.




m SBH6) MAINIINIAAI MIBSISIBHLNGUD BUD
6)B6IBSINM (B1Y).21)E60BSBo B1)2I)R60BEBIo
AwPMIRS3e EREITIWMIEN, ;rIE6Mo @R
(Mo(MOIM O EHBW®I @IZ|MDMIANYBWI B
@I(N60RS@ MIM) B EEMRODZHHW®Io BRMInO]
B6)3B 3o 6)2IQ)3M3. B QYo, SO, EOND),
@3SIWIS0 MISE0BIW BUDHLIIEInIE0BUDHE
(AI821IBMMIWMIW] AlOWHAISIMM SHSE WO
ag)(M @BRUTIW BYHBWIWMELIWIMTD (AIBM|E
W3RV 8 (N3@a] meIeNIINIeRI MIBSIS] BHel -

&BOSWIo MoMGIEODIOMY®Io SHLAWIEN

8nDIBHIBRIIMD MUMDE IS MBAMIS AlO@IMMI(D).

B IYIBH6IS 318)WIEE! (USEHE D@D MEIBYYM] ’
UeE MI83MM3, 3ISIOM @R LIGH|MUNIMEDBUD
8UdeAIS3mM3

The rituals, customs and beliefs constituting

the folklore of North Malabar are unique, as ~'_‘ o
they are vastly from those found and practi i ’ F s

in other parts of the state or the country. T miesisl/ . g s
folklore circuit tells us the story of the folk ar ng)©lany . v,
and culture in Malabar, with special focus on ddh|asiemIs - s
the indigenous martial art called Kalarippayattu, — m3 gy ‘ .
which is said to have inspired visual art forms [a1WIMNSI01Me/ ‘
such as Theyyam, Kathakali, Koothu, Koodiyat- 6610l .
tam, etc. This circuit extends from Vadakara in e 6oBUd j
Kozhikode district to Thalassery, and includes 213016)S b
six destinations. 8albBOZM3






eRNAMId BN

8 (ﬁ') :)Lsﬂ&ﬂms” IS 8nMIENWI (@ MA@ 6)21@)30M BLIIEGMIDEINT
BEHU([Mo BRYD] MINEIEH[@IOS 6303 IFBIMM BLH(MDIEGM. B8R0,
@el, @0 [MEN], $I0T ag)Mil alB603UD OUHEEHIBBIM BRIIGALIWIMGHINNEM)
2130386)@3nIMIEN BRIDIGHMIDGIN. HEEIAIWAINL! MaNIM MIWEMIBIDI
@] ENIMWEAISMIEN BRIIGMIDEINT BEH ((Mo. BR)BWIWMELIWIIEAI @REIW)
MIW @8aI8] BRMMTD BRIIEGMIDEINILICNO® @RH@IU]3. BEHU (M MUMIal
OO @ @M BHYH(METBRSINE - B30I 8BNANGE) MM MdAT 9] BEHIM (alWIM
B (Mo, DWJRINOORBS UBIUENY BLH (Mo, af3QU3o (UISBAE) BRRODISS
DaNINNa6MY BB (Mo. BRMINEMINNEDIW 2130@ 2l(MEDRSBIo S (Bl T3
830 BHESMMIANY NoRFEDIW GHEIDAIRMIW HE)AID|EOMIEN] (LBBRLQMIW
9BIaNEEMEIRGIEN. al@IMETUIo NIQYIENSMTB (UELIMISEM NUB|MIBHE6 A
s3m ecnflerMIE36S 0T HAWINFoZBUd (lG@BMMAMIW MIN60RUD
@I(Mo Oal8@IWg)I6m MM 9]l EH)ZMMDY. BLAB(MITNNIEIRSIHS RINMIW)
@eInOeel (alMIMAIW @RMIA0IMGLIWIW AlREHS] MHNI6S @RUME]
alleneaiszm].

Lokanarkavu temple situated in Memunda of Vadakara, Kozhikode, is an

ancient temple of the Aryan Nagarikas. Lokanarkavu is a shortened form

of Lokamalayarkavu, comprising the words Lokam [world], Mala [mountain], Aaru [
river] and Kavu [grove]. The Lokanarkavu temple is associated with the legendary
heroes and heroines of Kalarippayattu. The temple complex consists of three
temples - the main temple dedicated to Goddess Durga, the centrally-located one
dedicated to Lord Siva, and the northernmost dedicated to Lord Mahavishnu. The
maghnificent wall paintings and the wooden sculptures (Darusilpam) are notable
examples of the elegant artistic heritage of Kerala. Believed to have been drawn in
the 15th century, the mural paintings of gods and goddesses were made using only
natural colours. Poorakkali, a popular ritualistic art form in Malabar is performed
here as part of the temple festivals.
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Sree Thacholi Manikoth temple, located 2 kms from Vadakara town was
once the residence of Thacholi Othenan, the legendary Kalarippayattu war-
rior. The tharavadu [ancestral house] is completely ruined and what remains
now is a small temple dedicated to Thacholi Othenan, Kelu Kurup and Koma-
ka Kurup. A kalari [training arena], also functions here and is mainly aimed at
training young talents. This martial art has many rituals associated with it,
which include the worship of god and goddesses in the arena. Traditional as-
pects of the Kalari are maintained here. Poothara is a tiered altar where the
presiding deity of Kalarippayattu is worshipped. Other deities named Naga-
than, Ganapathy and Bhadra Kali are also venerated here.
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Thazhe Angadi [Downtown market] in the old city of Vadakara was once

the hub of Tipu Sultan’s spice trade. Coconut and areca nut were the major
produces traded here and more than a hundred Pandikasalas [warehouses]
were present here. Traders from northern parts of the country used to visit
this market and they left an indelible mark in the area by promoting cultural
activities, especially the singing of ghazals. Many historical buildings, schools
and mosques can be seen in this street. For the last 30-35 years, Vadakara
Thazhe Angadi has been a major commercial centre for Malabar antiques.
There are about 15 shops that sell a wide variety of antiques ranging from
old furniture, clocks, lights and gramophones to many other objects of her-
itage value.
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Ooracheri Gurukkal Memorial is a memorial gallery of Ooracheri Gurunath-
anmar (Masters) - five brothers who lived in Ooracheri House at Chokli near
Thalassery. They were Kunhikannan Gurunathan, Kunhikoran Gurunathan,
Kunhichanthan Gurunathan, Chathappan Gurunathan, and Othenan Guruna-
than, instrumental in the transfer of knowledge about Malayalam language
and grammar, the Vedas, Sanskrit and philosophy. Daily, Kunhikannan Gu-
runathan would walk from his house at Chokli to lllikkunu in Thalassery,
where Hermann Gundert lived, to teach him Malayalam and Sanskrit. The
first Malayalam-English Dictionary came into existence through this contact.
The picture gallery offers you to a glimpse of the life of Ooracheri Guruna-
thanmar and several other important personalities at Chokli. You can also
check out some books and articles available there about the masters.
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Kalarippayattu and its training have a century-old tradition in North Ker-
ala, and Ponniam village has made valuable contributions to its history. The
great legends of Kalarippayattu, Thacholi Othenan and his master Kathirur
Gurukkal fought their last Ankam [duel] at the Ezharakandam field of Pon-
niam. Thacholi Othenan beheaded his master using Poozhikadakam, an un-
ethical combat move in the Kalarippayattu. In an act of revenge, Othenan
was shot dead by Mayankutty, a disciple of the master. In memory of the
great legends of the 16th century, an annual festival known as Ponnia-
thankam is conducted in this field with the association of Kerala Folklore
Academy, during the Malayalam month of Kumbham, which falls in Febru-
ary-March. It provides a great opportunity to observe Kalarippayattu and
several other folk arts of Kerala.
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Kapparatti Bungalow was the residence of Vengayil Kunhiraman Nayanar, a
Malayalam short story writer and essayist. In 1891 CE, he built the Kapparatti
House. Later, as he thought that it was not sufficiently spacious, he built the
Bungalow. It took 22 years to complete the construction and the writer died
before its completion.

This magnificent 120-year-old house is an example of traditional architec-
tural splendour, notable for its abundant use of imported Burma teak wood
and designer tiles from London and Italy.
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The Cultural Circuit, a detailed storytelling nar-
rative on the cultural heritage of Malabar, con-
sists of 14 destinations, spanning across Kan-
nur district. This circuit covers virtually every
important aspect of life, from architecture to
folk arts to tales of mighty warriors and their
kingdoms to temples and to the glorious past
of kaithari [indigenous handloom]. This expedi-
tion is all about experiencing the unique culture
and traditions of North Malabar.
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Gundert Bungalow was the residence of Dr Hermann Gundert, a German
missionary, scholar and lexicographer who is remembered for his invalua-
ble contributions to the Malayalam language. In 1839 CE, he settled down
and lived here for almost two decades. Situated at lllikkunnu, which is 4
kms from Thalassery, this bungalow witnessed several initiatives in the
cultural history of Thalassery. The first Malayalam newspapers, Rajyasam-
acharam and Paschimodayam came out from the litho press set up at the
bungalow. The bungalow was also instrumental in triggering social reform
activities by providing English education and enhancing women’s means of
livelihood by the setting up of tailoring unit classes.
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he CSI Gundert Memorial Church, Nettoor, also known as lllikkunnu

Church built-in 1839 CE, was the first church established by the Basel
Mission in Kerala. Located close to the Gundert Bungalow, this church shares
the same history. Rev. Dr Hermann Gundert was the first priest of the
church, and served in the position for seven years from 1839 to 1846.

The church building represents an amalgamation of Kerala architecture

and colonial style. One can also visit the tomb of Gundert's grandson in the
church cemetery. Another attraction is that the tomb of Keeleri Kunjikannan,
the maestro of Indian Circus, It is also situated in the church cemetery
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Sree Chirakka Kavu Bhagavathy temple, located 5 kms from Thalassery,
Kannur is one of the oldest Devi temples in the district. It throbs with the
divine strength of Goddess Kali, Saraswathi and Lakshmi. Renowned for the
Theyyam performances of Thamburatti, Elam Karuvan Poothadi and Gun-
door Kottavanam, the annual festival of the temple which falls in April is a
much-awaited religious and cultural event for the villagers.

According to local belief, the place called Vaamal, now known as Vaamal
Deeputhara where the goddess appeared, is the Moolasthanam of the tem-
ple. After the Swayambhoo incarnation of the Goddess in the form of a fish
in Koduvally river, the King of Chirakkal royal dynasty built the temple at II-
likkunnu. Currently, the temple is managed by the Malabar Devaswom Board.
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Andalur Kavu, located at Andalur in Dharmadam village of Thalassery, is one
of the ancient temples in North Malabar region of Kerala and is believed to
have been built by the Sage Parasurama, the fifth version of Lord Vishnu.
There are two Kavus [shrines] in the temple - Mele Kavu [Upper Shrine]
represented as Ayodhya and the Thazhe Kavu [Lower Shrine] as Darika. The
main deities of this temple are Sree Rama, Lakshmana, Hanuman and Sita
Devi. The annual festival at Andalur Kavu falls in February and it is a time

of celebration for the whole community. During this time the whole village
observes vegetarianism and participates in the rituals and the customs of
the temple. A museum in the temple gives you an overview of Theyyam per-
formances at Andalur Kavu and its history. One can also observe a miniature
version of the temple complex and a life-size idol of Theyyam.
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Back in the mid-1900s, Moidu Bridge at Dharmadom was the only connect-
ing link between Thalassery and Kannur. Although built by the Britishers in
1930 CE, the bridge is named after T. L. Moidu Sahib, the State Legislative
Assembly Member, for his exemplary work in promoting the welfare of the
community. This 90-year old bridge was closed down in 2015 due to struc-
tural damage but never demolished considering its heritage value.
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Sree Oorpazhachi Kavu Temple is an ancient temple situated at Edakkad,
almost 12 kms from Kannur district. The three main deities of the temple
are Goddess Bhagavathy, Sree Oorpazhachi Daivathar and Vettakkurumakan,
within the inner temple enclave. There is also a shrine of Thondachan at

the Mele Kottam [upper citadel]. The temple has a rare significance because
of the Shaiva-Vaishnava sanctum within the same temple enclave.

Daivathar Vellattom [ritualistic oracle dance] is performed daily at noon, as a
prayer to the Lord. It is a rare sight because it hardly happens in the other
temples in the district. Vettakkorumakan Kaliyattom is also performed occa-
sionally. Annual festivals include Shivaratri Mahotsavam (during February)
and Mandala Vilakku (41 holy days during November and December).
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A famous pilgrim centre in the North Malabar region of Kerala, Sree Per-
alassery temple is situated at Peralassery in Kannur. The main deity wor-
shipped here is Lord Subramanya. Famous for snake worship, hen’s eggs

are the main offerings in the temple. The traditional temple art forms like
Thayambaka, Irattathayambaka, Chakyarkoothu, Pattakam Ottan Thullal, and
Kathakali are performed in the temple during festival seasons.

The temple pond is a source of wonder for all devotees. This rectangular
pond has an impressive architecture with countless steps leading into the
pool from all the four sides. The local belief is that on the day of Thulam
Sankramam, water from the Cauvery will reach the well of temple pond. This
temple, renowned for its architectural splendour and legends, is a must-visit
destination.
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Sree Makreri temple is another place of worship in Kannur, and is associated
with the Peralassery temple. According to the temple myth, Lord Hanuman,
the monkey god, installed the idol in Thretha Yuga. Since the supreme mark-
kadan [monkey] consecrated the idol, the temple got the nhame Markadd-
assery and over time it was shortened to Makreri. It is the only temple in
Kerala, where the tantri [chief priest] is Lord Anjaneya (Hanuman) himself.
The main deities are Lord Anjaneya, Lord Vishnu and Ganapathi. The temple
pond is also considered ancient and it is believed that the Lord Hanuman
dug the pond with his tail. V. Dakshinamoorthy Swamikal, the renowned
musician and music composer in Malayalam film industry, had a great role to
play in the renovation of the temple. A museum dedicated to him has a col-
lection of awards he received during his career.
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A walk past the centuries is what this enduring historical monument named
St Angelo Fort, popularly known as Kannur Fort, offers to the traveller.
Originally constructed by the Portuguese Viceroy, Don Francesco de Almei-
da in 1505 CE, the imperial walls of this fort virtually carry the chronicles of
trade, colonialism and battles. In 1663 CE, the Dutch captured this fort, made
certain modifications and later sold it to the Ali Raja of the Arakkal dynas-
ty. The Britishers then conquered this fort in 1790 CE and used it as their
military base. Presently, the fort is protected by the Archaeology Survey of
India. The fort, built using laterite stones and surkhi [brick dust] mixture,
has a triangular layout. Three beautiful and gigantic bastions, a lighthouse,
cannons, barracks and tombstones are the notable features of this fort.
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Arakkal Kettu, the palace of the erstwhile Arakkal dynasty, consists

of different independent building units including an open courtyard,
mosques, Durbar Halls and an Administrative Centre. It is located close to
the Sea Harbour and is three kilometres from the present Kannur town. A
portion of the Arakkal Kettu, which was once used as the administrative
centre by the British rulers, has now been converted into a museum by the
Department of Archaeology, and is managed by the Arakkal Family Trust.
Arakkal Kettu represents a combination of Kerala and colonial architectural
styles.
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Chirakkal Chira is a beautiful pond situated at Chirakkal village, 6 kms north
of Kannur. Spread over an area of about 15 acres, it is the largest artificial
pond in Kerala. It was built by Chirakkal rulers over 350 years ago, and is a
testament to the vision and intelligence of the rulers of a bygone era. There
are three branches of the Chirakkal family, and their kovilakams [palaces]
are situated on the three sides of the pond.

The Chirakkal dynasty is believed to be the descendants of Mooshaka king-
dom, who ruled from the 5th to the 8th century. Kolathiri was the dynasty
formed out of the Mooshaka kingdom and by the 18th century, the name
Kolathiri was forgotten and Chirakkal became prominent.
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hirakkal Folklore Museum, adjacent to Chirakkal chira, was established to

protect and preserve the folk culture and heritage of Kerala. The kings of
Chirakkal royal family are remembered for promoting folklore and arts, and
in recognition of that, the Kizhakke Kovilakam of the Chirakkal dynasty was
taken up by the Government of Kerala, and the Kerala Folklore Academy set
up in 1995. The entire building houses the Folklore Museum, the administra-
tive block of the Academy and a library.

The museum has life-size models of Theyyam as well as Padayani, miniature
forms of other folk arts, and their costumes, headgears and so on. Moreo-
ver, the agricultural equipment and percussion instruments used by tribal
people are collected and preserved here.
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The handloom industry in Kannur district dates back to the 16th century, al-
though it became popular only in the 19th century. The weavers belonged to
Saliya community, a traditional artisan group, who were brought from Tamil
Nadu by the Chirakkal kings for producing fabric needed for the royal family.
They were given land, and access to nearby temples. Their settlement led to
the establishment of different weaving theruvus [streets] across Kannur.
Azhikode Handloom Village is one such weaving street in Kannur district,
located 8 kms from Kannur town. In this village, weaving was part of their
life. The industry enjoyed a period of boom during 1960-80 when “Kannur
Crape” was a hit. Now, only five to six families are involved in handloom
weaving and most of them work for Hantex, where they supply fabric for
school uniforms.
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The Kakkulangara mosque is situated at Valapattanam, 7 kms north of Kan-
nur. It was built in typical Kerala architectural style but incorporated some
Arabic elements too. There are two different stories associated with its ori-
gin. To some, the mosque is connected to Malik Ibn Dinar, one of the earliest
Persian scholars to travel to India. To others, who are familiar with the diary
notes of Ibn Battuta (the 14th century Muslim scholar and traveller), the
mosque was built by a king of the Kolathiri dynasty who converted to Islam.
It is also mentioned that he accorded all facilities to Sayyid Abubakr, the
first Qazi of the place. Visit this mosque to admire its picturesque location,
beautiful pond, ancient minaret, the dargah of Muslim saint and its impres-
sive traditional architecture. The mosque has one of the most ancient min-
arets in the state.






